AGREEMENT

Between

Olympia School District No. 111 And Olympia Technical Professional Administrative Association

September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2024

Contents

ARTICLE 1 - Recognition	2
ARTICLE 2 - Rights of Management	2
ARTICLE 3 - Workday and Overtime	3
ARTICLE 4 - Probation and Seniority	4
ARTICLE 5 – Job Descriptions	4
ARTICLE 6 - Evaluation	5
ARTICLE 7 - Vacancies and Transfers	5
ARTICLE 8 - Layoff and Recall	6
ARTICLE 9 - Due Process	7
ARTICLE 10 - Employee Rights	8
ARTICLE 11 - Association Rights	8
ARTICLE 12 - Grievance Procedure	9
Section A- Definitions	9
Section B - Grievance Steps	9
Section C - Grievance Requirements	10
ARTICLE 13 - Salary	11
ARTICLE 14 - Salary Schedule Placement, Stipends & Training/In-service	11
ARTICLE 15 – Insurance	12
ARTICLE 16 - Leaves	14
Sick Leave	14
Bereavement Leave	15
Leave Sharing	15
Emergency Leave	15
Jury Duty	15
Health Leave	15
Dependent Care Leave	16
Family and Medical Leave Act	16
Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave	16
Leave of Absence/Unpaid Leave	16
Association Leave	16
Personal Leave	16
ARTICLE 17 - Vacation Accrual Schedule & Paid Holidays	17
Paid Holidays	17
ARTICLE 18 - Safety	18

ARTICLE 19 - Contract Distribution1	8
ARTICLE 20 - Saving Clause1	8
ARTICLE 21 - Association Security1	8
A. Association Membership and Agency Shop1	8
B. Payroll Deduction for Association Dues1	8
ARTICLE 22 - Closure of Offices and Employees' Responsibility During Emergency Closure. 1	8
ARTICLE 23 - Duration, Waiver and Complete Agreement1	9
APPENDIX A Salary Schedules2	20
APPENDIX B – Due Process Conference Form2	21
APPENDIX C Shared Leave Transfer Form2	22
APPENDIX D Grievance Review Request Form2	23
APPENDIX E – Just Cause2	24
APPENDIX F – Evaluation Form2	24
APPENDIX G – Core Competencies Rubric2	28

ARTICLE 1 - Recognition

The Olympia School District No. 111 (the "District") recognizes the Olympia Technical Professional Administrative Association /Washington Education Association as the exclusive bargaining representative of all regularly employed classified professional technical employees including, all employees who were previously in the Clerical unit who have District wide responsibilities except those employees designated as exempt by virtue of their status as supervisory or confidential employees. Substitute employees shall not be covered by this Agreement. The parties agree that as of the effective date of this Agreement, the following positions are exempt and not covered by the terms and conditions of this Agreement: Executive Assistant to the Superintendent, Assistants to the Assistant Superintendents, Accounting Office Supervisor, Payroll Supervisor, and Human Resource Office employees who provide information to the administrator responsible for preparation of collective bargaining proposals, negotiations, bargaining agreement administration, etc.

The Association agrees to hold the Olympia School District harmless in the event any suit or legal action occurs over the recognition of Olympia Technical Professional Administrative Association/Washington Education Association for the duration of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - Rights of Management

It is agreed by both parties that the management of the District and the direction of the workforce are vested with the District except as plainly relinquished by this Agreement. All matters not specifically covered in the language of this Agreement shall be administered for the duration of the Agreement by the District in accordance with such policies and procedures as presently exist or are determined by the District as needed in the future.

It is agreed that the customary and usual rights, powers, functions, and authority of management are vested in management officials of the District. Included in these rights is the right to direct the work force, the right to hire, promote, retain, transfer, and assign employees in positions; the right to suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action against employees; and the right to release employees or reduce their hours because of lack of work, financial needs, or for other legitimate reasons, so long as such action is consistent with the terms and conditions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. The District shall retain the right to maintain the efficiency of the District's operations by determining the methods, the means, and the personnel by which operations undertaken by the employees in the unit are to be conducted.

The Association president and representatives shall meet with the Superintendent and/or designated representative on a monthly basis to discuss contract issues.

In the event additional or varied work duties or products are introduced to employees of the bargaining unit, the Association shall be notified and when appropriate, given the opportunity to bargain the impacts. Proposed changes having more than a minimal impact on the affected bargaining unit members will be discussed between the Bargaining Unit and District Representatives. Respective job descriptions will be updated to reflect any such changes.

ARTICLE 3 - Workday and Overtime

- A. The employees' salary schedule is based on a forty (40) hour work week and will be prorated for employees who are assigned to work less than 40 hours per week. Employees returning to District employment from the prior school year will be given notice annually of their anticipated number of days of work, hours per day, and daily schedule, including start and stop times. A work week shall be defined as the period between Monday and Sunday of each week. Flexible scheduling may be accommodated based on agreement between supervisor and employee.
- B. In general, all schedule adjustments must be specifically approved in advance; however, supervisors may grant employees authority to work up to 15 minutes past the end of their scheduled shift in emergencies or to complete time-sensitive/unforeseen duties. All such schedule exceptions must be reported to the supervisor in a timely manner and recorded in the applicable timekeeping system. Supervisors may adjust employees' schedule during the same workweek if schedule exceptions would result in overtime. If a pattern of working beyond the assigned schedule becomes evident, the supervisor will schedule a meeting with the employee to address concerns.
- C. All employees shall be allowed a 30-minute, duty-free lunch period within a working day of five (5) hours or more, for which lunch period the employee shall not be paid. The employee is not required to remain at their workstation during the duty-free lunch period.

If an employee is required by their supervisor to work the employee's scheduled 30-minute duty-free lunch period, the employee's supervisor shall designate a lunch period of equivalent duration later that work day.

Each employee shall be allowed a paid fifteen (15) minute rest period during each continuous four (4) hours of work.

- D. Overtime shall be compensated at one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay, and will be paid for hours worked beyond 40 hours per week. This does not include time paid for holidays, sick leave, or any other paid time when the employee does not work.
 - Employees must obtain approval from their supervisors prior to working overtime.
- E. Compensatory time in lieu of overtime pay may be granted upon mutual agreement between the employee and the supervisor. If an employee is denied the opportunity to use the compensatory time, the employee may appeal this decision to the Director of Human Resources. Employees unable to use compensatory time may cash out such time at their regular overtime rate on the next regular pay warrant.
- F. Hours worked beyond thirty-two (32) during the first week of school will be paid or comped at one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee's regular rate of pay.

ARTICLE 4 - Probation and Seniority

- A. Each new hire shall remain in probationary status for a period of not more than ninety (90) working days following the hire date. During the probationary period, the retention of the employee shall be solely and entirely within the discretion of the District. The release of an employee during the probationary period shall not be subject to the just cause or grievance procedures of this Agreement.
- B. Seniority shall be determined from date of hire in the bargaining unit.
- C. Seniority rights shall be lost for the following reasons:
 - 1. Resignation
 - 2. Discharge
 - 3. Retirement
 - 4. Failure to return to work in response to a call back from layoff.
- D. Seniority rights shall not be lost for the following reasons:
 - Time lost by reason of industrial accident or industrial illness, including leave taken for exposure to COVID-19 or other infectious disease as described in the Health Emergency Labor Standards Act.
 - 2. Time on leave of absence granted for the purpose of serving in the Armed Forces of the United States.
 - 3. Time spent on other authorized leaves of absence, not to exceed one year.
 - 4. Time spent in layoff status as provided in this Agreement.
- E. The District shall publish the seniority list to all bargaining unit members in November and April of each year. Employees may contest their placement on the seniority list based on the criteria set forth in this section. Employees must notify Human Resources within ten(10) working days of the date of publication if they wish to contest placement.

ARTICLE 5 – Job Descriptions

Job descriptions outlining the duties for each position covered by the Agreement will be established in writing. These job descriptions shall enumerate minimum qualifications and responsibilities which place a position in a particular classification for salary purposes.

- A. In adding, revising or updating job descriptions, the employer shall extend to members of the bargaining unit the opportunity to make comments and provide information to the employer regarding job descriptions. Completed job descriptions shall include the specific duties of each position in the bargaining unit.
- B. A "Classification Review Committee" (CRC). The CRC will review and act on audits following the rejection of any submitted reclassification by the HR Director or designee. The Committee shall be equally comprised of representatives of the District and the Association. Each party shall choose their representatives to the Committee.
- C. Requests must be submitted to the Human Resources Director no later than May 1st. The review will be completed no later than July of each school year. In the event circumstances

necessitate reviews for the purpose of ascertaining the status of District position(s), the parties, through mutual agreement, may implement the provisions of this Article at any time during the calendar year to meet such demand.

ARTICLE 6 - Evaluation

- A. The supervisor shall annually report in writing to the Superintendent on the performance of each employee. This evaluation shall consist of a document assessing the employee's skill set and performance (Appendices F & G). The evaluator shall schedule a conference with the employee to discuss the evaluation. The evaluation conference shall occur prior to the evaluation documents being forwarded to the Human Resources office.
- B. An employee or supervisor may request an evaluation conference and/or written evaluative statement:
 - 1. In the event of voluntary or involuntary transfer to another position;
 - 2. When an employee resigns or is terminated; or
 - 3. When a significant change in employee performance occurs.
- C. All new employees shall be evaluated within 90 days of their hire date. This evaluation shall consist of a document identifying the employee's strengths and weaknesses.
- D. Evaluation is the responsibility of the supervisor and should reflect the requirements of the position. All employees shall be provided an annual written evaluation no later than June 1.
- E. The employee and the supervisor shall sign the evaluation in acknowledgment of having reviewed the evaluation. The employee may, at the employee's option, file a written statement to accompany the evaluation in areas where there is disagreement with statements in the evaluation.
- F. In the event the supervisor determines there are performance deficiencies, the affected employee and the supervisor shall meet to review the same. If the employees performance is unsatisfactory, the following steps may be taken:
 - 1. A plan of improvement in the cited areas, that is specific and reasonable, may be developed by the supervisor to assist in the remediation of the deficiencies. The employee may provide input to the plan.
 - 2. The plan, will continue for 60 days. The purpose of the plan of improvement is to give the employee the opportunity to demonstrate improvement in their area or areas of deficiency.
 - 3. During this period, the supervisor shall meet with the employee regularly.
 - 4. All plans and efforts to address the deficiencies shall be documented by the supervisor.
 - 5. In the event the employee does not demonstrate the competence required in the area or areas cited to be addressed to the satisfaction of the supervisor upon completion of the plan of improvement, the employee shall be so notified.
 - 6. Employees facing adverse action have access to the grievance/arbitration process (Article 12).

ARTICLE 7 - Vacancies and Transfers

When the District intends to fill a newly established position or a vacant position in the bargaining unit, written notice of such position shall be posted internally for a minimum of three (3) work days

before being posted outside the bargaining unit. Internal applicants will be considered before external applicants.

Vacant positions will be filled by the District based on the ability, qualifications, skills, experience, performance, and other relevant factors of the applicants for the job. The employee with the earliest hire date within the bargaining unit will receive preferential consideration for promotions and transfers when ability, qualifications, skills, experience, performance, and other relevant factors are substantially equal with those of other applicants. If the District determines that seniority should not govern, upon the written request of any bargaining unit employee applicant, the District shall set forth in writing its reason(s) for the seniority bypass for the applicant and the OPTAA president. Such reason(s) may be reviewed through, but not beyond, Step 3 - Superintendent's Level, of the Grievance Procedure.

In the event that an involuntary transfer is considered necessary, the District shall first solicit volunteers. An employee involuntarily transferred will be given reasons and granted an interview with the Director of Human Resources prior to any involuntary transfer. An employee involuntarily transferred shall receive two (2) weeks notice prior to such transfer. An employee involuntarily transferred shall have a priority to return to their immediate assignment for a period of one (1) year following such involuntary transfer. Whenever possible, the employee with the lowest seniority ranking shall be the first subject to any involuntary transfer or reassignment. This District shall be responsible for providing appropriate training to any employee who is involuntarily transferred. No employee may be reduced in hours or wage rate as a result of an involuntary transfer.

ARTICLE 8 - Layoff and Recall

A. Layoff

The term layoff shall mean termination from employment for other than disciplinary reasons. In the event of layoff because of financial necessity or other reasons as determined by the Board, the Employee with the least amount of seniority in the affected department will be the first laid off from the job. They, in turn, may replace an employee with less seniority in the same or lower level in the OTPAA unit, provided they have the qualification(s) as determined by the District to perform the job satisfactorily. Employees who are displaced from their jobs as a result of such bump back procedure may themselves replace an employee with less seniority in the same or lower level, provided such employee has the necessary qualifications as determined by the District. Laid off employees shall have accrued leave that is not paid out at separation or transferred to another school District reinstated upon recall from layoff.

The District will make any reductions through attrition before considering layoffs.

The District agrees to meet with the Association prior to a reduction in force and share information and the plan for reductions consistent with the terms of this Agreement. In all cases an employee shall be given thirty (30) working days' notice of layoff.

No subcontracting of OTPAA work shall be permitted (excluding substitute coverage).

B. Recall

Employees who are laid off will be placed in a reemployment pool. Reassignment from this pool to existing vacancies shall be in reverse order of layoff based on skills and qualifications, as determined by the District. Laid off employees shall have recall rights for one (1) year, September 1 through August 31 following receipt of notice of layoff, provided that:

- 1. The District shall give written notice of recall from layoff by sending a certified letter, return receipt requested, to employee at employee's last known address supplied to Human Resources. Notification will also be sent via email if the employee has a personal email address on file with Human Resources. Employees are responsible to update Human Resources with their current contact information, including mailing address, phone number and personal email address.
- 2. The employee's contact information as it appears on the District Human Resources records shall be conclusive when used in connection with layoffs, recalls or other notice to employee.
- 3. Employees in the pool shall be notified via personal email and certified letter of a bargaining unit position available to them. Failure to accept a proposed assignment within five (5) business days of receipt of the certified letter or within five (5) business days of personal email, whichever is sooner, shall place the employee at the bottom of the layoff list.
- 4. In the event a position becomes open that is for reduced hours, days of work, or reduced compensation, an employee may decline the offer one time, and retain their position in the employment pool. Only after an employee has refused one position that is substantially equivalent, including FTE and schedule, to their immediate past position will that individual's name be removed from the reemployment list.
- 5. No new employees shall be hired to fill existing vacancies until the laid off employee(s) have refused the position or are determined not to meet minimum qualifications as determined by the District, or have failed to respond timely to recall notices.
- 6. if more than one employee on recall status meets the minimum qualifications, as determined by the District, for an open position and each has an identical hire date, drawing by lot will be conducted by the Association.
- 7. Throughout the recall process the District shall keep the Association President(s) apprised of the process on a weekly basis.

Employees on recall status will be given first priority for OTPAA temporary jobs for which they meet minimum qualifications, with such assignments distributed on the basis of seniority.

ARTICLE 9 - Due Process

- A. The District shall have the right to discipline or discharge an employee for just cause. (See appendix E) The specific grounds forming the basis for such action will be made available to the employee.
- B. Discipline of staff members shall normally be progressive in routine cases of unsatisfactory behavior to consist of the following steps:
 - 1. Oral warning with follow-up written reminder of this oral warning (provide a brief summary of incident, including the date & time). See Appendix B.
 - 2. Letter of direction clearly identifying the problem and a timeline to correct the problem.
 - 3. Should the employee's behavior continue to be unsatisfactory, the principal or supervisor shall recommend suspension without pay or discharge, whichever is considered by the District as appropriate. Prior to implementation the reasons for suspension without pay or discharge shall be in writing and delivered to the affected employee as prescribed in this Agreement.

- 4. Nothing in this section shall limit the District in taking immediate and severe disciplinary action in cases of sudden and/or extraordinary behavioral or performance problems.
- C. Initial notification of any complaint of a disciplinary nature made against an employee will be brought to the attention of the employee within ten (10) working days during which the employee is present at their regularly assigned job site. If an employee is not advised of the complaint it may not be used in future disciplinary action or evaluations.
- D. An employee shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association present at any meeting which is reasonably expected to lead to disciplinary action.

ARTICLE 10 - Employee Rights

- A. The District and the Association agree that each employee has the lawful right to organize, join and support the Association for the legal purpose of engaging in collective bargaining.
- B. There shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment by reason of race, creed, color, national origin, age, gender, gender identity, gender expression, honorable discharged veteran or military status, marital status, sexual orientation, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, or because of their membership in employee organizations. The Association and the District will cooperate to assure compliance with District non-discrimination policies and non-discrimination laws.
- C. Employees shall, upon request, have the right to inspect the contents of their District personnel file. Upon request, a copy of any document contained therein shall be afforded the employee.

Employees will be notified of any complaint, letter of reprimand or evaluative materials, which are entered in the District personnel file. The author of any such materials, and the date of entry, shall be noted on the documents filed. Documents shall be removed from the personnel file after three (3) years unless retention is required by law. Employees may request that documents be removed after one (1) year. Such requests shall be made to Human Resources.

The employee shall have the right to attach permanently their own written comments to materials in the District personnel file. Such materials shall be dated and signed by the employee.

ARTICLE 11 - Association Rights

- A. On or before the first day of December, the District shall provide the Association with the following information regarding each employee in the bargaining unit: name, current work site, job title, hourly rate of pay, and F.T.E.
- B. The Association shall have the right, contingent upon approval of the site administrator, to hold meetings on District property provided that such meetings are during non-paid time.

- C. The Association will have the right to use District equipment pursuant to the following guidelines:
 - 1. Such use of District equipment shall be subject to the approval of the site administrator and shall not be approved when such use will interfere with the District program.
 - 2. The Association shall reimburse the District for any cost to the District incurred by such use of equipment, including the cost of any repairs or damages to equipment, which results from Association use.
- D. The Association has the right to place bulletin boards in each building at which bargaining unit employees are assigned. The size and placement of each bulletin board will require authorization by the District. The bulletins posted by the Association are the responsibility of the officials of the Association.
- E. The District will inform the Association of each new hire covered by this Agreement within three (3) days of the hire. Such notification shall include the employee's name, job title and FTE, and work location. Within three (3) days of the employee's start date, the Association designee and the employee shall have thirty (30) minutes of paid time to discuss benefits of Association membership.
- F. The District shall promptly notify the Association in writing of any public records requests made by any individual or organization for information on individual bargaining unit members, the unit in whole, or any portion thereof, along with notification of the District's intention regarding the fulfillment of the request.
- G. The District shall provide paid release time for the purposes of collective bargaining, grievance adjustment, and the labor management meetings.

ARTICLE 12 - Grievance Procedure

Section A- Definitions

- 1. A grievant is an employee, group of employees, or the Association (if written authorization is given by an impacted employee) having a grievance.
- 2. A grievance is an action or lack of action arising from the alleged misapplication or misinterpretation of a term(s) of this Agreement.

Section B - Grievance Steps

Step 1- Informal Discussion

The grievant shall first discuss the grievance with their immediate supervisor. If the problem involves the relationship between the employee and their supervisor, they may initially present the grievance to the Director of Human Resources. An effort should be made at this level to resolve the grievance.

Step 2 - Administrator's Level

If no settlement is reached in Step 1, the grievant shall, within twenty (20) working days of the alleged misinterpretation or misapplication of a term of this Agreement, complete the grievance form (Appendix B) providing the following information: the facts on which the grievance is based; reference to the Articles and Sections of the Agreement alleged to have been violated; and the remedy sought.

The employee shall submit the grievance form to the next appropriate administrator (assigned by the Superintendent). The administrator will provide opportunity for the employee to discuss the grievance. The parties will have ten (10) working days from submission of the written grievance to resolve the dispute and indicate in writing the disposition of said grievance.

Step 3 - Superintendent's Level

If no settlement has been reached in Step 2 within the specified time limits, and the Association believes the grievance to be valid, the grievant may, within ten (10) working days, submit the written grievance to the Superintendent. The Superintendent or their designee(s) and the grievant shall have ten (10) working days after receipt of the grievance to resolve said grievance by indicating, in writing, the disposition thereof. It is understood that the same administrator can only rule on an issue once. In such cases, the Superintendent will hear the appeal or provide another administrator.

Step 4 - Binding Arbitration Level

If in the grievance has not been resolved at Step 3, within the specified time, the Association may submit the grievance within fifteen (15) working days to final and binding arbitration. The following stipulations shall govern:

- a. The arbitration shall be conducted by an arbitrator mutually agreed upon by the grievant and the District and shall be conducted under the rules of the American Arbitration Association.
- b. The arbitrator shall have no authority except to pass upon alleged violations of the provisions of the Agreement.
- c. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to add to, subtract from or modify any of the terms of this Agreement and shall not substitute their judgment for that of the employer except where the employer has plainly relinquished its rights and prerogative by the terms of this Agreement.
- d. The arbitrator shall render no decision which would be in violation of a law or enter disputes that are a matter of legal jurisdiction.
- e. No evidence may be presented at the arbitration which was not presented at a lower level of the grievance procedure.
- f. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to hear a grievance and/or fashion a remedy for any matter occurring prior to the signing of this Agreement.

The Association or the District, whichever is ruled against by the arbitrator, shall pay the compensation of the arbitrator. Each party shall pay any costs, fees, expenses and compensation, including wages and salaries, relating to its own witnesses, representative, or attorney. The cost of the stenographic record will be paid by the party requesting it. If the other party requests a copy of the transcript, that party will pay one-half of the stenographic costs.

Section C - Grievance Requirements

The grievant may have an Association representative present at all steps of the grievance process.

Filing of a grievance shall be initiated by the employee in writing within twenty (20) working days of the date such grievance is discovered or reasonably should have been discovered. A grievance not filed in a timely manner will be deemed waived. Timelines shall be strictly followed unless

extended by mutual agreement of the parties. If a grievant fails to submit a grievance to the next step within the time specified, the grievance shall be deemed waived.

All documents, communications and records dealing with any grievance shall be handled in a confidential manner and filed separately from the personnel files of the participants; provided that in the event the decision should result in information relevant to the employee's misconduct or inadequate performance, a copy of the decision may be placed in the employee's file.

All individuals involved, and all others who might possibly contribute to the acceptable adjustment of a grievance, may testify with full assurance that no reprisal will follow by reason of such participation.

ARTICLE 13 - Salary

- A. Employees hired or promoted to a position shall be paid the salary established for that classification as indicated in this Agreement.
- B. If an employee is temporarily assigned to work for more than one (1) day in a position having a higher wage rate on the negotiated salary schedule, then such employee will be placed on their experience step in the level of the position being filled for the duration of the temporary assignment. Employees temporarily assigned to work in a position having a lower wage rate shall be paid at their regular rate. The Association shall be notified in writing when such a temporary reassignment occurs and the expected duration of the assignment shall be greater than five days.
- C. OTPAA members Levels 1 4 will be called on in rotational order, to provide break and lunch coverage for the District receptionist desk when needed. In the case of full-day absence, the District will make every effort to obtain a substitute prior to calling on OTPAA members to cover the absence.

ARTICLE 14 - Salary Schedule Placement, Stipends & Training/In-service

Section A – Salary Schedule Placement

The Salary Schedule is located in Appendix A of this agreement.

When determining placement on the salary schedule, experience is defined as: All verifiable professional/technical experience of a like nature to the position that the employee has been hired to fill.

The parties recognize the current salary placement of the various unit positions as having been determined through negotiations.

In the event O.S.P.I., A.G.O., State Auditor, or other body of competent jurisdiction determines, in writing, that the wages and/or benefits provided classified employees of the District do not comply with legislative guidelines and statutes and/or State Operating Budget or Appropriations Act, the District shall bring wages and/or benefits into compliance as set forth by one of the bodies herein above.

Section B - Stipends

An annual stipend will be paid on the September payroll to those employees who hold a Professional Standard Certificate, vocational certificate or degree, Associate of Arts Degree, Bachelor's Degree or higher, provided the degree or certificate shall have been earned prior to the school year for which the stipend application is made. For employees hired after September 30th, the stipend will be prorated based on the number of days in the year. These stipends shall not be combined, and will be as follows:

a.	Program or Vocational Certificate	\$500
b.	Associate Degree	\$600
C.	Bachelor's Degree or higher	\$850

For Program or Vocation Certificates the following applies:

- 1. Such certification is connected to current job related skills required to maintain the position the employee is currently in.
- 2. Training and In-Service must be eligible for state approved clock hours or are from a recognized training program, and have received prior written approval from the employee's supervisor before the stipend is paid.

Section C - Training/In-service

Any hours of training, in-service, conferences (including fees) or courses required for an employee or group of employees to attend by the District will be paid at the employee's regular hourly rate of pay or at the overtime rate, if applicable, for all hours in attendance including travel time, if the employee is required to travel outside the District. Expenses (travel, food, lodging) incurred, fees and tuition will be paid by the District in accordance with District travel and budget policies. With permission from a supervisor, employees may attend trainings during their regular workday.

Employees who provide training to new bargaining unit members will be paid a differential of 25% of their regular rate for time spent training, up to 20 hours.

ARTICLE 15 – Insurance

Beginning January 1, 2020, the following conditions shall apply:

School Employees Benefit Board (SEBB) Program:

Beginning January 1, 2020, the District shall pay the full portion of the employer contribution to the School Employees Benefit Board (SEBB) for insurance program as adopted in the School Employees Health Care Coalition agreement for all employees who meet the eligibility requirements outlined below. The employer contribution will be equal to the state funded allocation rate and will paid throughout the school year.

SEBB will implement the School Employees Health Care Coalition agreement when establishing the employee rates which will be paid to the Health Care Authority (HCA) through payroll deduction for the month in which the employee receive benefits.

Benefits provided by the SEBB will include but not be limited to:

- Basic Life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance (AD&D)
- Basic Long-term Disability
- Vision
- Dental including orthodontia
- Medical Plan

Employees are eligible to participate in the SEBB offered Medical Flexible Spending Arrangement (FSA) Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP). Employees will also have the option of enrolling in a Health Savings Account (HSA) when a qualifying High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) is selected for their medical insurance. In addition, employees will be able to utilize payroll deduction for any supplemental insurance that they choose to enroll through SEBB (e.g. increased AD&D, Long-term disability, etc.).

Dependent Coverage for the Purpose of SEBB:

Legal spouses, state-registered partners, children up to age 26 (biological and adopted children, children of the employee's spouse or state-registered domestic partner, children for which a court order of divorce decree created a legal obligation to provide support or health care coverage) and children of any age with a developmental or physical handicap who are not capable of self-support.

Eligibility:

All Employees, including substitute employees, shall be eligible for full insurance coverage under the SEBB program if they work 630 hours or more in a school year. All hours worked during the school year shall count for purposes of establishing eligibility. Employees who are hired late in the year but are anticipated to work 630 hours or more the following year are eligible for coverage based on the HCA rules for mid-year hires Paid leave hours shall count towards the 630 hours used to determine eligibility for benefits under this section. Employees on unpaid leave will be considered in an employment status for the provisions of this section. An employee on approved leave under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or the Washington State paid Family Medical Leave Program may continue to receive the employer contribution toward school employees benefits board (SEBB) insurance coverage in accordance with the federal FMLA or RCW 50A.04.245.

For an employee on leave without pay who is no longer anticipated to meet the eligibility standard for employer paid insurance benefits by the end of the school year, the employee will have the option of self-paying the premium to HCA.

Benefit Enrollment/Start:

Benefit coverage for new employees will begin the first day of the month following the first day of work when it is expected that the employee will work 630 hours, except during the month of September when the employee's benefit coverage will begin in September if the employee is expected to work 630 hours or more during the school year and that employee begins on or before the first day of school in September.

Should an employee who previously was not expected to be eligible for benefits under SEBB works 630 hours in one year, the employee will become eligible for benefits to begin the month after attaining 630 hours. Should the employee meet the 630-hour eligibility mid-year for two consecutive year, the employee will be anticipated to work 630 hours going forward and therefore be eligible for benefits under SEBB.

Continuity of Coverage:

When a new employee to the district was previously employed by a SEBB employer and was eligible for SEBB coverage, that employee will have uninterrupted benefit coverage if they are anticipated to work 630 hours or more in the school year. If an employee was not anticipated to work 630 hours in a school year but meets that eligibility criteria during the school year, the employee will become eligible for SEBB benefits and will begin coverage in the month following this establishment of eligibility.

Benefit Termination/End:

Any employee eligible for SEBB who terminates employment shall be entitled to receive the District insurance contribution for the remainder of the calendar month in which the contribution is effective.

Employee Wellness:

If the district provides an Employee Assistance Program, information on how to access the program and benefits shall be posted on the District website, and included in new employee's onboarding materials.

ARTICLE 16 - Leaves

Sick Leave

Employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per month worked to a maximum of twelve (12) days per year. Sick leave shall be compensable upon separation (as per statute), retirement, or death as provided and limited by law. Accumulated sick leave is transferable from one school district another as provided by state law.

- A. Sick leave is to be used in the event of absence for (1) personal illness, accident or temporary disability; (2) to care for the employee's or spouse's immediate family. Immediate family is defined as: parent, sibling, spouse, domestic partner, child, grandchild, grandparents and spouse's parents with a health condition which requires treatment or supervision; After five (5) consecutive days of absence or in the event of a pattern of regular absences, a written verification by a doctor may be required.
- B. In January of the year following any year in which a minimum of sixty (60) days of sick leave is accumulated, and each January thereafter, any eligible employee may exercise an option to receive remuneration for unused sick leave earned the previous year in excess of sixty (60) days to monetary compensation at a rate equal to one day's current, regular rate of compensation of the employee for each four full days of accrued sick leave. Sick leave for which compensation has been paid shall be deducted from the employee's accrued sick leave at the rate of four days for every one day's monetary compensation. Each employee shall be given a monthly accounting of sick leave.

An employee who separates from District employment due to resignation, retirement or death employee who is an "eligible employee" under RCW 28A.400.21-(2) may elect (personally or by their personal representative) to receive remuneration at a rate equal to one day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four full days accrued sick leave to the extent allowed by applicable law and regulations. : Employees new to the District will be credited with their sick leave balance from any other public school district in the State of Washington. .

Bereavement Leave

Up to five days of bereavement leave with pay will granted for each occurrence of death in the employee's or spouse's immediate family. Immediate family is defined as: parent, sibling, spouse, domestic partner, child, grandchild, grandparents and spouse's parents.

One (1) day will be granted for bereavement for a person of close personal ties when the employee attends the funeral or memorial service.

Leave Sharing

Employees shall be permitted to participate in a Leave Sharing Program consistent with the provisions of RCW 28A.400.380 and WAC 392-126.

Individual employees may donate up to six days of sick leave each year in accordance with applicable state regulations. (See Appendix C)

Emergency Leave

In the event of an emergency that necessitates an employee's absence, an employee may apply for up to two (2) days of emergency leave, either in advance or retroactively, for a contingency not provided for by statute or other District policies. Emergency leave may be deducted from employee's sick leave bank, vacation bank, or compensatory time. Emergency leave shall be deducted from an employee's sick leave bank. Such contingencies may include, but are not limited to, accidents which prevent the employee's reporting to work, serious damage to personal property when the employee's absence is necessary to prevent further damage, or similar emergencies which make it impossible for the employee to report to work. Emergency leave may be granted only if:

- A. The problem has been suddenly precipitated or is of such nature that preplanning could not have relieved the necessity for the employee's absence.
- B. The problem is serious and not one of minor importance or mere convenience.

Application for emergency leave under this section shall be made in writing to the Director of Human Resources.

Jury Duty

Any employee covered by this Agreement who has been called for jury duty will be excused from work to serve. No salary deduction shall be made.

Health Leave

Upon written application to the Superintendent or designee, an employee who has exhausted all accumulated sick leave may be granted uncompensated health leave not to exceed one (1) year for illness or injury. Such written application must be accompanied by verification from the employee's attending physician as to the need for such leave.

Dependent Care Leave

Upon written application to the Superintendent or designee, dependent care leave without pay may be granted for up to one (1) year to an employee for the care of a newly born or newly adopted child under the age of eighteen, or to care for a dependent adult. The employee shall notify the Superintendent and the immediate supervisor as soon as possible of the employee's intention to take leave and the planned time for such leave.

Family and Medical Leave Act

The District will provide eligible employees with up to twelve (12) weeks of FMLA (Family and Medical Leave Act) leave per year in accordance with state and federal laws.

Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave

Washington State Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML). Commencing January 1, 2020, employees shall be eligible to receive Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML) under the Washington State Family and Medical Leave and Insurance Act. To be eligible for this leave, employees must have worked a minimum of 820 hours within the past calendar year. Such leave shall be used consecutively with the employee's other leave entitlements unless the employee elects otherwise. The District shall pay 50% of the premium.

Leave of Absence/Unpaid Leave

An employee covered by this Agreement may request permission to be absent from employment without pay for a period of up to one year, subject to approval by the Superintendent and/or his designee. The administrator shall approve or deny the request within ten working days or sooner, if possible, of receiving it.

Said request shall be for a legitimate reason when there appears to be no other leave for the purpose requested, but subject to securing the proper replacement so as not to interfere with the efficient execution of the job requirement.

Leaves shall not be granted for time off for the purpose of other employment.

An OTPAA member returning from leave will have twelve (12) calendar months to apply for vacant, posted OSD positions. All leave of absence/unpaid leave rules continue to apply.

Disapproval of a request for a leave of absence shall be subject to the grievance procedure exclusive of final and binding arbitration.

Association Leave

The Superintendent or his designee may grant Association leave for members of the Association who are duly authorized by the Association to participate in Association business during working hours. Application for Association leaves must be in writing and must be received by the Superintendent or his designee no less than five (5) working days prior to such requested leave. Association leave shall not exceed ten (10) days annually for all employees for the school year, exclusive of collective bargaining, labor/management meetings, representation meetings, and grievance meetings. Association leave shall be without loss of pay or benefits.

Personal Leave

Employees may take up to two (2) days per year for personal reasons. Personal leave may be deducted from employee's sick leave bank, vacation bank, or compensatory time.

ARTICLE 17 - Vacation Accrual Schedule & Paid Holidays

Number of Yrs	Vacation Days	Number of Yrs	Vacation Days	Number of Years	Vacation Days
less than 2	12	9, 10	17	19, 20	22
2	13	11, 12	18	21, 22	23
3, 4	14	13, 14	19	23, 24	24
5, 6	15	15, 16	20	25 or more	25
7.8	16	17 18	21		

Upon hire, new employees will be given credit for time worked in other school districts or ESD's when placed on the vacation accrual schedule.

Vacation shall be prorated, based on the total hours/FTE per year (2080 = full year). The formula for calculating your FTE is hours per day x days per year divided by 2080. For employees whose schedule is less than 12 months, vacation days will be accrued September through June. Employees may use up to 5 vacation days during the school year.

Full-time (1.0) employees who accrue vacation may carry over vacation to the following year, although no employee may carry more than fifty (50) days of vacation at any time.

Vacation Cash-Out

A full- time employee may request to be cashed-out for up to forty (40) hours of accrued vacation once per school year, subject to following District procedures with regard to providing advance notification, as long as the employee maintains a minimum of forty (40) hours accrual after the cash-out.

Less than full-time employees may request to cash out any unused vacation time. These employees may request a cash out of their year-to-date vacation balance as of December 31st to be paid on the January salary warrant. The balance of total annual vacation accrual will be paid in the July salary warrant.

Vacation Leave shall be deemed used on a FIFO (first in, first out) basis. At the time of termination of employment, employees may be paid at the employee's hourly rate for accumulated vacation in an amount not to exceed thirty (30) days, or such lesser amount so that the District avoids any attendant financial penalty or other legal constraints. Every effort shall be made by the employee and the employee's supervisor to avoid having leave in excess of thirty days on the books at the time of termination.

Paid Holidays

An employee is compensated for holidays which fall during a month in which they are regularly employed. Paid holidays for the term of this Agreement shall be: Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and the Friday following, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, and July 4th. In addition, employees who would regularly work Christmas Eve (day) and New Year's Eve (day) will have those days off with pay.

If a holiday falls on a weekend, then either the preceding Friday or succeeding Monday will not be scheduled as a regular workday in conformity with Federal and State laws or practice.

ARTICLE 18 - Safety

The District will comply with safety required by RCW 28A.320.125 Safe School Plans-Requirements-Duties of school districts, schools, and education service districts-Reports-Drills-Rules.

The District will convene a building safety committee with an equal number of representatives from the Association and the District. The committee shall meet at least twice per year, beginning within 30 days of full OPTAA occupancy of Knox 111.

ARTICLE 19 - Contract Distribution

The employer shall make this agreement available to members represented by the OTPAA, within twenty (20) working days following ratification by the Board, by posting it on the appropriate District website.

ARTICLE 20 - Saving Clause

It is the intention of the parties hereto to comply with all applicable provisions of the state or federal laws, and they believe that each and every part of this contract is lawful. All provisions of this contract shall be complied with unless any of such provisions shall be declared invalid or inoperative by a court having jurisdiction. In such an event, either party may request renegotiation of such invalid provisions and the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 21 - Association Security

A. Association Membership and Agency Shop

1. Each employee who on the effective date of this Agreement is a member of the Association in good standing, shall maintain their membership for the period of this Agreement.

B. Payroll Deduction for Association Dues

- 1. With respect to each employee obliged to be an Association member, the District shall, upon receipt of an appropriate written authorization form from any employee who authorizes such deductions pursuant to RCW 41.56.110, make a monthly payroll deduction in the amount of the Association's regular and usual required monthly dues.
- 2. Each month the District shall promptly remit those monies deducted under B (1).
- 3. The Association shall indemnify and hold the District harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, charges, or suits instituted against the District which shall be based upon or arise out of any action taken by the District in accordance with or arising out of the foregoing provisions of this section.

ARTICLE 22 - Closure of Offices and Employees' Responsibility During Emergency Closure

In the event of snow or other such natural events, employees will make an effort to get to work on time. If the employee cannot travel to work safely, they may choose to utilize emergency leave.

In the event that conditions force a closure of a work-site, employees who are scheduled to work 240 days or greater may utilize emergency leave, vacation leave, compensatory time or make arrangements to work at another site or home with the approval of their supervisor. Employees may also make up missed time if it is mutually agreeable between the supervisor and employee. Making up missed time shall not constitute overtime pay.

Employees scheduled to work less than 240 days will make up their time by having days added to their calendar. These employees should not report to work and there is no need to take leave at the time.

ARTICLE 23 - Duration, Waiver and Complete Agreement

The period of this contract shall be September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2024.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and concludes collective bargaining for its term, except as otherwise provided herein. For the period of this agreement, increases in wage rates and maximum insurance amounts will be the amount authorized and funded by the legislature, except as otherwise provided for in this contract.

This Agreement may be otherwise altered, changed, added to, deleted from or modified at any time only with the mutual consent of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hand and seal.

Attest

For the Association:

Alicia Snyder, President

Olympia TPAA

For the District:

Patrick Murphy, Superintendent

Secretary of the Board

APPENDIX A -- Salary Schedules

Olympia Technical Professional Administrative Association

2021-22 Salary Schedule

2021-22	oalary c	cricadi	•								
	1	2	3	4	5	7	9	11	13	15	20
Level 1											
	\$22.91	\$23.47	\$24.01	\$24.57	\$25.20	\$25.77	\$26.38	\$27.04	\$27.71	\$28.43	\$29.11
Level 2											
	\$24.57	\$25.20	\$25.77	\$26.38	\$27.04	\$27.71	\$28.43	\$29.11	\$29.87	\$30.55	\$31.36
Level 3											
	\$25.77	\$26.38	\$27.04	\$27.71	\$28.43	\$29.11	\$29.87	\$30.55	\$31.36	\$32.14	\$32.97
Level 4											
	\$27.04	\$27.71	\$28.43	\$29.11	\$29.87	\$30.55	\$31.36	\$32.14	\$32.97	\$33.78	\$34.62
Level 5											
	\$27.71	\$28.43	\$29.11	\$29.87	\$30.55	\$31.36	\$32.14	\$32.97	\$33.78	\$34.62	\$35.47
Level 6											
	\$29.87	\$30.55	\$31.36	\$32.14	\$32.97	\$33.78	\$34.62	\$35.47	\$36.36	\$37.27	\$38.22

2022-2023 school year: A 4.5% salary increase, inclusive of the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD). If IPD is greater than 4.5% then the salary increase shall be equivalent to IPD.

2023-2024 school year: A 3.5% salary increase, inclusive of the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD). If IPD is greater than 3.5% then the salary increase shall be equivalent to IPD.

APPENDIX B – Due Process Conference Form

Olympia School District Due Process Conference Form

Employee's Name:	
Supervisor's Name:	
We affirm that a Step I conference was held on this date: See Article IX - Due Process	Date
Employee's Signature:	
Supervisor's Signature:	

APPENDIX C -- Shared Leave Transfer Form

PLEASE READ THIS PAGE CAREFULLY BEFORE FILLING OUT DONATION FORM. If you have any questions, please call Human Resources at 360-596-6185.

Purpose: The purpose of the Washington State leave sharing program is to permit state employees, without significantly increasing the cost to the state for leave, to come to the aid of another state employee: 1) who is suffering from or has a relative or household member suffering from an extraordinary or severe illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition; <u>or</u>, 2)who has been called to service in the uniformed services; <u>or</u> 3) consequence of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking and where the fact of either 1), 2), or 3) has caused or is likely to cause the employee to take leave without pay or terminate his or her employment.

You may donate annual leave or accrued sick leave.

- 1. Donations are processed by hours.
- 2. Do not contribute annual leave hours which would reduce your balance to less than 10 days (80 hours), or the prorate equivalent if you are less than full-time, or contribute any excess annual leave hours that you would otherwise be unable to use because of any approaching anniversary date.
- 3. Do not contribute accrued sick leave hours which would reduce your balance to less than 22 days.
- 4. All unused days donated to a specific person will be returned to the donator.
- 5. No employee shall receive a total of more than 522 days of leave during length of employment.

SHARED LEAVE TRANSFER FORM							
I authorize the Olympia School district to transferhours of my eligible earned sick/annual							
Leave for:	Unrestricted Pool Donation						
	PRINT	NAME					
Ву	PRINT YOUR NAME	Bldg. Location	Date				
By: Payroll Supervisor							

APPENDIX D -- Grievance Review Request Form

Olympia School District No. 111 Grievance Review Request Form

This form is to be utilized when referring a grievance to the Superintendent as provided in Step 2 of the Procedure.

Na	ame of Grievant:
Da	ates of private conferences as provided in Step 1:
Na	ame of Administrator with whom conferences were held:
1.	Alleged facts on which the grievance is based:
2.	Specific provisions of the Agreement between the District and the Olympia Technica Professional Administrative Association (OTPAA) which are alleged to have been violated:
3.	Remedy being sought:
	Date Signature
	{Please make 2 extra copies of this form: original to Supervisor, 1st copy to staff member, 2nd copy to OTPAA President(s).}

{Please make 2 extra copies of this form: original to Principal, 1st copy to staff member, 2nd copy to OTPAA President(s).}

APPENDIX E - Just Cause

WHAT DOES "JUST CAUSE" MEAN?

The concept of "just cause" requires that there be fundamental fairness in decisions related to the discipline and discharge of employees. Arbitrators have articulated many definitions and explanations of "just cause" over the years, including, but not limited to the following tests:

- 1. Did the employer give the employee forewarning or foreknowledge of the possible or probable disciplinary consequences of the employee's conduct?
- 2. Was the employer's rule or managerial order reasonably related to the orderly, efficient, and safe operation of the business?
- 3. Did the employer, before administering discipline to an employee, make an effort to discover whether the employee did in fact violate or disobey a rule or order of management?
- 4. Was the employer's investigation conducted fairly and objectively?
- 5. At the investigation, was there evidence or proof that the employee was at fault?
- 6. Has the employer applied its rules, orders, and penalties evenhandedly and without discrimination to all employees?
- 7. Was the degree of discipline administered by the employer in a particular case reasonably related to (a) the seriousness of the employee's proven offense and (b) the record of the employee in their service with the employer?

APPENDIX F - Evaluation Form



OLYMPIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

OTPAA Performance Evaluation

Date Evaluator Employee Job Title Job Title

	Annual
	90-Day

Part 1: Agency Core Competencies (Expected of all Employees)

Assess performance in accordance with the competency rubrics of: Distinguished (D), Proficient (P), Emerging (E) or Unsatisfactory (U). Supervisor comments must be used in support of assessments rated Distinguished or Unsatisfactory.

LINK Core Competencies Rubric

Asses	Assessment				Title	Description
_	Е	P	D	N/A	Essential Job Functions	Employee performs the essential functions of his/her position as specified in the job description.
u	Е	P	D	N/A	Accountability, Dependability	Takes personal responsibility for the quality and timeliness of work and achieves results with little oversight.
C	Е	P	D	N/A	Adaptability	Adapts to changing business needs, conditions and work responsibilities.
U	Е	Р	D	N/A	Decision-making, Judgment, & Problem Solving	Makes timely, informed decisions based on facts, goals, constraints and risks. Able to resolve challenges.
_	т	P	D	N/A	Relationships & Teamwork	Builds constructive working relationships which demonstrate acceptance, cooperation, respect and commitment to the department/program and to ESD staff.



OLYMPIA SCHOOL DISTRICT



OTPAA Performance Evaluation

_	C	_
т	ш	m
P	P	P
D	D	D
N/A	N/A	N/A
D N/A Communication	P D N/A Service Orientation	P D N/A Ethics & Integrity
Communicates with clarity and accuracy through listening, reading comprehension, speaking and writing skills,	Has knowledge of agency services and actively links them to expressed needs. Builds & maintains internal and external satisfaction with the products and services offered by the organization.	Treats others with courtesy, sensitivity and respect. Considers and responds appropriately to the needs and feelings of different people in different situations. Behaves in an honest, fair and ethical manner. Shows consistency in words and actions.

List or describe the expected training or development need. Training & Development Needs/Opportunities Link training and development needs/opportunities to Competencies and Focus Goals for this performance year. List or describe the expected result. Focus Goal(s) Performance Goals and Expectations The following are areas of focus for the performance year indicated. Limit number of focus goals to no more than three

How is the training or development need being met?

5/2/2022 26



Overall Comments

OTPAA Performance Evaluation OLYMPIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

Distribution: Original to Human Resources, Copies to Employee and Evaluator	Employee's Signature	Evaluator's Signature	
	Date _	Date	

APPENDIX G – Core Competencies Rubric

Accountability/Dependability Rubric

Criteria: Takes personal responsibility for the quality and timeliness of work and achieves results with little oversight.

little oversight.	,	' /		
Component	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	Emerging frequency indicators in this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	Proficient frequency indicators in this category may include: frequently, often, steadily , usually, regularly	Distinguished frequency indicators in this category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always
Work-place	Seldom prepared	Generally	Frequently	Consistently
preparedness	to begin the workday at designated start time.	present at work at designated start time.	prepared to begin work at designated start time.	present and working at designated start time.
Policy/procedure awareness	Seldom takes initiative to research information via policies, procedures and practices applicable to his/her daily work.	Generally maintains a basic understanding of policies, procedures and processes.	Maintains knowledge of current policies, procedures and processes.	Consistently follows and remains current on policies, procedures and processes; proactively identifies deficiencies; researches and identifies appropriate options; and recommends corrective actions to supervisor.
Accountability	Seldom takes responsibility for personal actions and performance and seeks to blame others.	Sometimes accepts responsibility for personal actions and performance.	Supports the successful mission of the department through personal accountability.	Consistently accountable for actions and performance; seeks opportunities for continuous professional development and growth; aware and sensitive to his/her impact on others.
Adherence to position requirements	Seldom fulfills position requirements in a timely and satisfactory manner without	Generally fulfills position requirements in a timely manner under direct supervision.	Frequently (or Regularly) fulfills position requirements in a timely and satisfactory	Consistently exceeds position requirements with little or no supervision. Can be trusted to take

excessive	manner with	appropriate
supervision.	minimum	initiative.
	supervision.	

	Adaptability Rubric					
Criteria: Ad	apts to changing bu	siness needs, condit	tions and work responsibilities.			
Compone nt	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	Emerging frequency indicators in this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	Proficient frequency indicators in this category may include: frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	Distinguished frequency indicators in this category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always		
Adaptabili ty to changing workplace	Seldom able to adapt to changing workplace. Resi stant to accept change, even minor ones, and may be hostile to new initiatives.	Sometimes makes limited efforts in fulfilling changes in workplace conditions. Diffi culty accepting change.	Frequently embraces departmental/program and/or organizational policies/procedures/standards/p ractices, and remains composed under the stress of change.	Consistently proactively adjusts work practices to accommodate changing work environment. Applies techniques necessary to successfully implement change.		
Approach to assisting others in adapting to change	Seldom assists peers in adapting to changes.	Sometimes may assist peers when approached for assistance but will not proactively offer assistance.	Frequently accepts personal accountability for embracing change and often assists peers with change management.	consistently supports change in both behavior and practice in interactions and will proactively seek to assist peers. Quick to persuade others of the benefits of change.		
Persevera nce in adapting to change	Rarely able to overcome adverse outcome(s) of change without significant	Sometimes strives to implement change outcomes but generally does	Frequently adapts to change and actively supports its implementation. Regularly solves unexpected challenges and issues that may arise.	Consistently employs an analytical approach to overcoming initial adverse		

	support. Does not persevere when expected result is not achieved.	not take initiative to problem solve road blocks or unexpected challenges. Fails to utilize other resources to problem solve.		outcomes resulting from change. Rem ains actively engaged in successfully implementing change.
Coping with the unexpecte d	Seldom attempts to navigate the unexpected.	Usually informs management of situation and waits for direction.	Frequently copes with the unexpected by remaining calm, evaluating the situation and seeking appropriate assistance.	Consistently accepts that the unexpected will occur and takes appropriate initiative to resolve issues prior to seeking management assistance. K eeps supervisors informed and suggests improved methods to accomplish work.

Decision-Making, Judgment & Problem Solving Rubric

Criteria: Makes timely, informed decisions based on facts, goals, constraints and risks. Able to resolve challenges.

Component	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	Emerging frequency indicators in this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	Proficient frequency indicators in this category may include: frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	Distinguished frequency indicators in this category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always
Judgment	Infrequently draws conclusions from facts, goals, constraints and risks.	Usually draws conclusions from a limited analysis of facts, goals, constraints and risks.	Individually and with colleagues, frequently draws appropriate conclusions from a thorough analysis of facts,	Individually and with colleagues, consistently draws appropriate, actionable conclusions from a thorough analysis of facts, goals, constraints and risks that improve

			goals, constraints and risks.	short- and long-term decisions.
Contribution	Rarely participates in decision making at the agency, department or team level and rarely contributes relevant ideas or expertise.	Sometimes participates but rarely contributes relevant ideas and expertise to decision making at the agency, department, or team level.	Frequently participates and contributes relevant ideas and expertise to decision-making at the agency, department or team level.	Consistently contributes ideas and expertise that are critical to agency, department or team efforts; many ideas stem from research.
Problem- solving	Seldom able to employ sound logic in problem solving. Expects others to define the questions.	Sometimes can describe the problem-solving process, can formulate a few questions, but may not critically assess how well it was applied to the current problem.	Frequently utilizes sound logic in problem solving. Asks relevant questions.	Clearly and concisely articulates the problem-solving process, asks probing questions and describes how well it was applied to the current problem.
Ability to think creatively; create alternatives	Seldom presents solutions that address critical parts of the problem.	Sometimes presents alternative solutions for dealing with obstacles or constraints, but the solutions do not always address the important difficulties.	Frequently proposes alternative solutions that are plausible and that address the most important constraints or obstacles.	Consistently identifies creative solutions to the problem that not only address the difficulties posed by the problem; but that also address constraints/obstacles not immediately apparent.

Relationships & Teamwork Rubric Criteria: Builds constructive working relationships which demonstrate acceptance, cooperation, respect and commitment to the department/program and to ESD staff. Unsatisfactory **Emerging Proficient** Distinguished frequency indicators in frequency indicators in frequency indicators in this frequency indicators in this this category may this category may include: category may include: frequently, often, steadily include: category may include: constantly, consistently, Component generally, normally, infrequently, irregularly, , regularly, usually almost always seldom, rarely typically, sometimes

Acceptance and Cooperation	Seldom collaborates or considers ideas other than his/her own.	Sometimes shares ideas but does not advance the work of the team.	Usually offers alternative solutions or courses of action that build upon the ideas of others.	Consistently helps the team move forward by articulating the merits of alternative ideas or proposals.
Respect	Argumentative with members of the team; may resort to personal attacks (e.g. put downs, shunning, spreading of rumors).	Generally treats others respectfully by being polite and constructive in communication.	Usually polite and courteous to others; constructive in communication and encourages participation by all team members.	Consistently polite and courteous to others; constructive in communication and works to diffuse disrespectful situations.
Performance as a team member	Seldom makes an effort to engage team members; interrupts and/or talks over others.	Sometimes engages team members by taking turns and listening to others without interrupting.	Usually engages team members in ways that facilitate their contributions by building upon the contributions of others.	Consistently engages team members in ways that facilitate contributions by both building upon the contributions of others as well as noticing when someone is not participating and inviting them to engage.
Contributions to the team	Seldom completes assigned tasks by established deadlines; misses meetings; relies on others to do the work.	Sometimes completes assigned tasks by established deadlines; attends meetings regularly.	Usually (or frequently) completes assigned tasks by established deadlines; attends meetings regularly; offers constructive ideas; work accomplished is accurate and thorough and advances the goals of the team.	Consistently completes assigned tasks by established deadlines; attends meetings regularly; work accomplished is accurate and thorough and advances the goals of the team; proactively helps other team members complete their assigned tasks to a similar level of excellence.

Ethics & Integrity Rubric

Criteria: Treats others with courtesy, sensitivity and respect. Considers and responds appropriately to the needs and feelings of different people in different situations. Behaves in an honest, fair and ethical manner. Shows consistency in words and actions.

Component	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	Emerging frequency indicators in this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	Proficient frequency indicators in this category may include: frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	Distinguished frequency indicators in this category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always
Safeguarding confidential information	Seldom maintains adequate safeguards for the privacy and confidentiality of information.	Employee has a basic knowledge of safeguards for the privacy and confidentiality of information and sometimes seeks further clarification as needed.	Employee has a thorough knowledge of safeguards for the privacy and confidentiality of information and maintains adequate safeguards in everyday practice.	Employee understands the critical nature of guarding confidential information, consistently employs sound judgment to achieve confidentiality in everyday practice, and promotes the importance of confidentiality amongst colleagues.
Meets the standards of ethical conduct	Fails to meet the standards of ethical conduct (e.g. lying, stealing, timecard fraud, destroying documents, etc.)	Normally meets the standards of ethical conduct and seeks supervisor input if unsure or if there was an infraction, makes the necessary changes after meeting with supervisor.	Meets the standards of ethical conduct usually without supervisory input.	Consistently meets the standards of ethical conduct without supervisory input and promotes good decision making throughout the organization.
Values integrity	Displays dishonesty.	Is respected as honest.	Is respected as an honest and credible source as well as a proven confidant.	Is respected as an honest and credible source as well as a proven confidant who can be trusted with sensitive information.
Creates and promotes inclusiveness and openness	Exhibits a lack of respect toward others.	Exhibits candor, openness, and inclusiveness to those with whom he/she is comfortable.	Exhibits candor, openness and inclusiveness to all.	Exhibits candor, openness, inclusiveness to all and promotes these attributes throughout the organization.

Service Orientation Rubric

Criteria: Has knowledge of agency services and actively links them to expressed needs. Builds & maintains internal and external satisfaction with the products and services offered by the organization.

Organization.	Uncaticfactory	Emoraina	Drofisiont	Dictinguished
	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in	Emerging frequency indicators in	Proficient frequency indicators in	Distinguished frequency indicators in this
	this category may	this	this	category may include:
Component	include:	category may include:	category may include:	constantly, consistently,
Component	infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	generally, normally, typically, sometimes	frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	almost always
Knowledge of	Rarely	Generally	Usually able to	Consistently able to
program and	demonstrates	demonstrates	explain both	link a wide variety of
agency	understanding of	some	program and	program and agency
services	program and	understanding of	agency services	services to
	agency services.	program services	and link program	expressed needs.
		with a developing	services to	
		understanding of	expressed needs.	
		agency services.		
Service level	Seldom considers	Generally considers	Frequently collects	Consistently
	the needs of	the needs of others	input from others	considers input for
	others to be	to be important	and utilizes it in an	others and analyzes
	important.	and typically	effort to improve	external factors to
		delivers an	services.	predictively improve
		acceptable level of		and/or create new
		service as a result.		services.
Relationship	Seldom attempts	Generally exhibits	Frequently builds	Consistently
building	to establish	positive working	and maintains	develops positive,
	relationships with	relationships with	positive and	productive and
	those we serve.	those we serve.	productive	trusted relationships
			relationships with	with those we serve
			those we serve	and purposefully
			and ensures a high	plans ways to
			level of service is	provide superior
			provided.	levels of service.
Partnering	Seldom	Sometimes	Frequently	Consistently
	collaborates with	collaborates with a	collaborates with a	collaborates with a
	other programs or	few programs and	number of	number of different
	agencies;	agencies with	different programs	programs and
	represents only	which he/she is	and agencies.	agencies and
	his/her own	comfortable.		initiates the
	interests.			development of
				networks.
Satisfaction	Seldom responds	Sometimes	Frequently,	Consistently ensures
	to feedback	responds	actively promotes	systems are put in
	regarding	appropriately to	feedback	place to maximize
	satisfaction levels	feedback regarding	regarding	satisfaction levels of
	of those we serve.			those we serve.

satisfaction levels	satisfaction levels	
of those we serve.	of those we serve.	

Communication Rubric

Criteria: Communicates with clarity and accuracy through listening, reading comprehension, speaking and writing skills.

and writing skills	and writing skills.						
Component	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom, rarely	Emerging frequency indicators in this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	Proficient frequency indicators in this category may include: frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	Distinguished frequency indicators in this category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always			
Listening	Interrupts before a person has completed his/her thought process; easily becomes defensive; demonstrates lack of attention/focus on the content and intent of the speaker.	Generally listens without interrupting and is able to focus attention on the content and intent of the speaker.	Usually listens with attention and is able to focus on the content and intent of the speaker. Asks questions to ensure clarity.	Consistently listens with undivided attention and is able to focus on the content and intent of the speaker. Asks thought-provoking questions in an effort to gain a deeper understanding of the message.			
Reading comprehension	Seldom able to make judgments, predictions or inferences based on information read.	Sometimes able to make judgments, predictions or inferences based on information read.	Usually able to make judgments, predictions or inferences with some degree of accuracy, based on information read.	Consistently able to make judgments, predictions or inferences with a high degree of accuracy, based on information read.			
Speaking	Speaks using sentence structure that inhibits the listener from understanding the message: weak vocabulary or inappropriate usage or word choice and/or limited organization/focus.	Speaks using sentence structure that generally gets the idea across, but the listener may need to clarify.	Regularly speaks using sentence structure that is precise, purposeful, organized and focused.	Consistently speaks using sentence structure that is precise, purposeful, organized, focused and uses word choice directly related to the audience (use of jargon).			

Writing	Demonstrates	Demonstrates	Regularly	Consistently
	grammar and usage	some grammar	demonstrates	demonstrates
	flaws, no variety in	and usage flaws,	correct grammar	correct grammar
	word choice, and/or	limited variety in	and usage,	and usage, variety
	several flaws in correct	word choice,	variety in word	in word choice,
	sentence and	and/or some	choice, correct	correct sentence
	paragraph structure.	flaws in correct	sentence and	and paragraph
		sentence and	paragraph	structure, writing
		paragraph	structure, and	is clear/concise
		structure.	writing is clear	and relates to the
			and concise.	audience (use of
				jargon).

Essential Job Functions (EJF) Rubric

Criteria: Employee performs the essential functions of his/her position as specified in the job description.

description.				
	Unsatisfactory frequency indicators in	Emerging frequency indicators in	Proficient frequency indicators in this	Distinguished frequency indicators in this
Component	this category may include: infrequently, irregularly, seldom,	this category may include: generally, normally, typically, sometimes	category may include: frequently, often, steadily , regularly, usually	category may include: constantly, consistently, almost always
Ability to	Fails to	Generally	Often accomplishes	Consistently
fulfill the	accomplish the	accomplishes the	the essential functions	accomplishes the
EJFs	essential functions of the job.	essential functions of the job with	of the job without supervisor guidance.	essential functions of the job without
	Jou.	supervisor guidance.		supervisor guidance and initiates tasks to go above and beyond the job description.
Knowledge, skills and abilities	Is missing many of the required educational, functional and/or technical skills necessary to perform his/her job.	Has most of the required educational, functional and technical knowledge, experience and skills necessary to do his/her job and seeks support from his/her supervisor when needed.	Has and uses the required educational, functional and technical knowledge, experience and skills necessary to perform his/her job.	Has and uses the required educational, functional and technical knowledge, experience and skills necessary to perform his/her job and seeks to enhance these to go beyond the minimum requirements of the job.
Work	Completes	Completes most	Completes all work	Completes all work
product	minimum tasks of	work within the	within the given	within the given

required by EJFs	the job and needs consistent prompting by the supervisor.	given timeframe and/or work might need to be reviewed by a supervisor.	timeframe and work is produced at a professional level that does not need to be reviewed by a supervisor.	timeframe, work is produced at a professional level that does not needs to be reviewed by a supervisor, and seeks opportunities for additional work.
Work quality	Seldom monitors quality of work. Lacks accuracy in completed work products.	Monitors accuracy and quality of work. Work products are generally of acceptable quality.	Monitors accuracy, quality and completeness of work; frequently provides recommendations for improvement as needed.	Proactively develops success indicators and monitors and reports to ensure quality, accuracy and completeness of work. Products are consistently of high quality.